ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
LEGQ SLATI VE COUNCI L
DECEMBER 04, 2015
2: 00 PM
Approved April 14, 2016

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Representative Bob Herron, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senator Peter M cciche
Representative Craig Johnson
Representative SamKito

MEMBERS ON TELECONFERENCE
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or John Coghi |l |
Representative M ke Hawker
Representative Charisse MIlett
Representati ve Mark Neuman

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT OR ON TELECONFERENCE

Senat or Egan; Representati ves Dr ummond, G uenber g,
Quttenberg, Josephson, LeDoux, and Saddl er

AGENDA

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
APPROVAL OF M NUTES
CONTRACT APPROVALS
OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

SPEAKER REG STER

Tina Strong, Procurement O ficer, Legislative Affairs
Agency (LAA)

Sue Cotter, Information and Tel econference Manager, LAA

Pam Varni, Executive Director, LAA

( SPEAKER REG STER CONTI NUES ON NEXT PACGE)



SPEAKER REG STER CONTI NUED

Tanci Mntz, State Leasing & Facilities Manager, Dv. of
Ceneral Services, Dept. of Administration

Serena Carl sen, Partner, Stoel Rives, LLC

Peter Shorett, Exec. Vice President, Kidder Matthews Real
Est at e Appr ai sal

Juli Lucky, Staff to Rep. M ke Hawker, District 28

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 2 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



2:01:11 PM

CHAI R GARY STEVENS called the Legislative Council neeting
to order at 2:05 p.m in +the Anchorage Legislative
Information Ofice Auditorium Present at the call were
Senators Stevens, Meyer, Hoffman, Huggins, and M cciche;
Representatives Herron, Johnson, and Kito. Absent were

Senators  Coghill and MGQuire, alternate nenber, and
Represent ati ves Hawker and Neuman. Senator McKi nnon joi ned
the neeting initially via teleconference until her arrival

at the Anchorage LIO Speaker Chenault joined the neeting
via teleconference after the roll call

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

VICE CHAIR HERRON noved that Legislative Council approve
t he agenda.

There were no objections and the agenda was approved as
present ed.

APPROVAL OF M NUTES
a. February 10, 2015
b. June 26, 2015
August 18, 2015
Sept enber 2, 2015
Sept enber 28, 2015

® 20

2:02: 30 PM
VICE CHAIR HERRON noved that Legislative Council approve
the mnutes of the follow ng neetings as presented:

February 10, 2015
June 26, 2015
August 18, 2015
Sept enber 2, 2015
Sept enber 28, 2015

Paooo

There were no objections and the mnutes were approved as
present ed.

CONTRACT APPROVALS
a. Homer O fice Space Renewal
b. New Tel econference Bridge System Approval

a. Homer O fice Space Renewal

2:03: 08 PM

VICE CHAIR HERRON noved that Legislative Council approve
the Honer office space l|lease renewal to Cayton & Joan

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 3 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



Ellington in the anount of $59,580.60 for the tinme period
of Novenber 1, 2015 through Cctober 31, 2016.

CHAI R STEVENS obj ected for the purpose of discussion

TINA STRONG  Procurenent Oficer for the Legislative
Affairs Agency, testified via teleconference that the Honer
| ease was approved as a three year |ease beginning Novenber
1, 2012, through October 31, 2015. The |ease has five one
year renewal options avail able and approval is being sought
for the first renewal period of Novenber 1, 2015, through
October 31, 2016. She said this was a standard |ease
renewal and woul d be happy to answer any questions.

2:04:41 PM
SENATOR MACKI NNON noted that she was on tel econference on
route to the Legislative Council neeting and asked M.

Strong how the rental rate in Honer conpared to other
rental rates across the state.

M5. STRONG responded that the nonthly rental rate is
$4,965.05 and they are conparable with other leases in
Honer. In response to a followup question from Senator
MacKi nnon, Ms. Strong responded that the office space is
2,936 square feet. Senator Gary Stevens and Representative
Paul Seaton, along with the Legislative Information Ofice
all have office space in Honer. The price per square foot
is $1.69.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER said he understood there are three
people in the Homer office and about 3,000 square feet. He
said he didn't think Senator Gary Stevens was at the Homer
office too nuch of the tine, so there are probably only a
coupl e of people in this office space. In |ooking at office
space all over the state for the LIGs, he wondered whether
there coul d be sonme consolidation or cutting back.

CHAIR STEVENS said that to address the specific issue of
who is there, there is an LIO officer present during
session; Representative Seaton has an office for hinself as
well as an office for his staff; and the Chair noted he has
an office for his staff but does not have an office for
hi nsel f.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER followed-up to say that there are
about three people there year round and four people during
sessi on.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 4 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



SENATOR M CCI CHE asked if M. Strong knew the average cost
for legislative office space per square foot across the
state. He <clarified that he wasn't talking about the
Legislative Information O fice space, which is space for
the public; rather he was referring to office space for
Legislators and their staff.

M5. STRONG responded that the office space rental rate
varies from $5.18 per square foot in Barrow to $1.63 per
square foot in Ketchikan, not including Anchorage.

SENATOR M CCICHE said he believed the Honer office space
cost is reasonable but that he would like to know the
average cost of legislative office space across the state
so that Council has sone sort of nodel.

CHAIR STEVENS said that Pam Varni, Executive D rector of
the Legislative Affairs Agency, would conpile and make t hat
avail able to Senator M cciche and the full Council.

2:10: 11 PM
SPEAKER CHENAULT noted that he was on tel econference.

CHAI R STEVENS noted that also on teleconference were
Senat or Egan; Representative GQGuttenberg; Senator MacKi nnon
who would be arriving shortly; Peter Shorett, Kidder
Matt hews; Serena Carlsen, attorney with Stoel Rives LLC,
Deven Mtchell, Departnent of Revenue; and Chuck Burnham of
Legi sl ati ve Research.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said that in regard to Senator M cciche’'s
request, and because of the tough tinmes Alaska is facing,
it would be nice to have a |look at the Executive Branch
space standards and Senator M cciche’s request would get us
there, but there were several conponents to that. One is to
know the space that is being allocated to |I|egislative
of fices throughout the state; the second is to know the
cost per square foot, which would then give Council the
final nunmber that Senator Mcciche is |looking for and that
is how much utilization per nenber on a per square foot
basis exists around the state to support constituents. She
requested that the informati on be presented together.

CHAI R STEVENS confirnmed with Ms. Varni that the informtion
was available for every LIO and other legislative office
space across the state. Ms. Varni agreed that could be done
ri ght away.

There was a roll call vote.
Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 5 of 35

Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



YEAS: St evens, Herron, Meyer, Hoffman, Huggi ns, MacKi nnon
M cci che, Chenault, Johnson, Kito

NAYS: None
The notion was approved 10-0.
b. New Tel econference Bridge System Approval

2:12:46 PM

VI CE CHAIR HERRON noved that Legislative Council award |ITB
612 to the low bidder, Arrow Systens Integration, in the
anount of $84, 154. 57 for t he Legi slature’s new
t el econference bridge which includes installation costs.

CHAI R STEVENS obj ected for purpose of discussion.

SUE COITER, WManager of Information and Tel econference, said
she was inforned a little over two nonths ago that the
manuf acturer of the present bridge system would no | onger
support the hardware and software for the system As
Council understands, the bridging service is mssion
critical to participation by citizens around the state in
legislative conmttee neetings. She worked wth Tina
Strong, Procurenent Oficer, and the Media Services staff
to issue a bid. Three bid proposals were received and the
| owest was Arrow Technology; it took care of all current

needs and provided extra bells and whistles as well. She
said the information provided in the packet covers
everything she just testified too as well as additional

details. She said she was available to answer questions and
Tim Power was on teleconference for any technical
guesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked for a quick explanation of the
extra bells and whistles nentioned.

M5. COITER said that one of the things it will allow for is
to connect people to neetings faster; it pre-identifies
testifiers that are frequent callers, such as comm ssioners
or Executive Branch staff and Legal Services staff. These
callers will no longer need to spell their names and
identify thenselves, which saves a lot of time in
connecting callers to the neeting. There are times that up
to seven neetings are being held at the sane tine, there
will be two or three bridge operators answering the phone
and it takes up a lot of time to ask nane, spelling,
affiliation, etc.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 6 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



Aroll call vote was taken.

YEAS: Stevens, Herron, Meyer, Hoffman, Huggi ns, MacKi nnon
M cci che, Chenault, Johnson, Kito

NAYS: None
The notion was approved 10-0.

OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS
a. Anchorage LIO
b. Gottstein Lawsuit Update (Executive Session)

a. Anchorage LIO

CHAI R STEVENS said he had a couple of coments regarding
this issue. He said the Legislature has been dealing wth a
fiscal crisis here in the state; everyone in the room knows
this because they have dealt with it in various conmttees
and in the budgets. There were several <cuts to the
Legislative Affairs Agency budget resulting in a |oss of
personnel. Oher nmajor changes were made throughout the
system He said we know there wll also be significant
reductions the next |egislative session. He said we are all
aware we are trying to find ways to reduce the budget, cut
costs and do our job as inexpensively as possible. He
pointed out that what we are doing as Legislative Counci
is making recommendations to the Senate and House, and
along the way to the Finance Conmittees in both the Senate
and the House. W are not able to pass a budget; that is
not the job of Legislative Council. He asked that nenbers
pl ease keep that in mnd that what happens here was sinply
a recommendation to the rest of the Legislature on what
Counci | thinks should be done.

Chair Stevens said that this is the ninth year he has been
involved in Legislative Council. The questions of the
Anchorage LIO has always been one that has never really
been answered, and that is does Council want to own the LIO
or to lease the LIO That is the very foundational and
fundanmental question that we have dealt with, or not dealt
with, frankly, over the years. He said he renenbered when
Senator Cowdery was Chair of Legislative Council, there was
tal k about the possibility of a building that would conbi ne
| egislative offices with the Court System on property that
the State had. Senator Cowdery was quite frustrated in his
attenpts to nove ahead on that |egislative building and, of
course, that did not happen. He said the next Chair,
Representative Harris, found hinmself in the sanme position

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 7 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



Senator Menard al so worked hard to have the Anchorage LIO
nove into what is now the NANA Building, but because
Council took too long to nake a decision, we |ost out on
that building. Then, of course, Representative Hawker in
dealing with this issue the last two years found hinself in
real frustration trying to come to a conclusion; and now he
is sharing in this experience as the current Chair.

Chair Stevens said he really hoped Council could nove ahead
and make that very foundational decision: does Council want
to own or does it want to lease a building in Anchorage. He
said several options would be presented at today’s neeting
on where Council mght go. There has been a lot of tine
spent in dealing with this. There are five options and each
one wll be explained in detail. He said there are
certainly other options and there is no attenpt being nade
to say that these options being presented are the only
options available to Council. There are also lots of ways
to finance a purchase should that be the choice. He said
that while there may be other issues discussed, he was
asking that Council hear the five options being presented

di scuss themin as nuch detail as nmenbers care to hear, and
then he would ask Council to go into an Executive Session
for confidential information. He requested Pam Varni and
Doug Gardner to conme forward to explain the five different
scenarios and to answer any questions that nenbers may
have.

Chair Stevens noted that also on teleconference to answer
guestions about financing options and |egal issues were
Deven Mtchell, Departnent of Revenue and Al aska Minici pa
Bond Bank Authority; Serena Carlsen, Stoel Rives LLC, who
has been negotiating on behalf of Legislative Council on
the purchase price of the building; and Tanci Mntz, State
Leasi ng and Facilities Manager , Depart nent of
Adm ni stration.

PAM VARNI, Executive Director of the Legislative Affairs
Agency, introduced herself and Doug Gardner, Director of
Legal Services, for the record. She said she would be going

over the Chairman’s report. At the April 13, 2015,
Legislative Council neeting, the Chair was to analyze
options for legislative office space in Anchorage and
report back to the full Council on three itenms: (1)

purchasing 716 W 4th Avenue building and | and; (2) request
bonding <costs from Alaska Housing Finance Corporation
(AHFC) to purchase 716 W 4th Avenue building and | and; and
(3) evaluate State-owned office space.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 8 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



She said negotiations have been ongoing over the interim
between the nmanaging owner of 716 W 4th Avenue, Mark
Pfeffer; his attorney Don Mdintock, wth Ashburn and
Mason; Serena Carlsen, Council’s outside real estate
attorney with Stoel Rives; herself; the Council Chair
Senator Stevens and his staff Katrina Matheny; and Doug
Gardner, Director of Legal Services. Serena Carlsen is the
expert that has been doing the negotiating wth Don
McClintock and Mark Pfeffer, and she is on tel econference
to answer questions.

Ms. Varni said that there are several scenarios for
consi deration: continue the current |ease; purchase through
AHFC; Mar k Pfeffer suggest ed pur chasi ng t hr ough
Certificates of Participation, which was added as another
possi ble scenario; a cash purchase through the Capita
budget; and finally to nove to State-owned space at the
Atwood Building. She said she would go through these
scenari os and wel coned nenbers’ questions at any tine.

CHAIR STEVENS interrupted to note copies of the scenarios
were avail able for nmenbers of the audience.

M5. VARNI began with Scenario #1: Continue Current Lease at
716 W 4th Avenue. She said the action required is that the
Legislature needs to fully fund the Legislature’s State
Facilities Rent conponent every year for the remainder of
the 10 year lease. She noted that the reason all the
scenarios were for a 10 year period was that the real
estate attorney suggested that tine frame as that is the
period of the |ease obligation. Twenty year scenarios are
available for all nenbers who want to |ook at those
nunbers. She advised nenbers that the graph in this
scenario, as with all the other scenarios, does not show
any inflation figures. Naturally, as tinme goes on, the
operating expenses nmay change. The graph under this
scenario shows the annual |ease anmpbunt of $3,379,656 the
operati ng expenses budgeted for $652,344 for a total annual
cost of $4,032,000. The 10 year total cost is $40, 320,000
and a per square foot rate of $7.41.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked Ms. Varni to confirmthat the tota
square footage of the building is 64, 000.

M5. VARNI responded that 64,000 is the gross square
f oot age, but that al | of the Legislature’s |eases
t hroughout the state as well as for the Executive Branch
are based on usable square footage. These cal culations are

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 9 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



based on usable square footage and that total is 45,371
square feet plus 86 parking spots.

SENATOR M CCICHE said he asked the question because the
Honer office space |ease square footage nunber was over
4,000 square feet.

M5 VARNI said she believed the Homer LIO square footage to
be 2,900 and that is usable square feet, it is not gross.

SENATOR M CCI CHE said that when he thinks about the office
space that is used in Honmer, there is a very |large conmon
area. Wien he conpares it to the Anchorage LIO it seens
like nore of the comon space would be wused in the
cal cul ation. He asked what areas conprised the 20,000
square feet of non-usable areas at the Anchorage LIO

M5. VARNI said it included the penthouse, all of the
el evators, rest roonms, essentially every square inch of the
bui | di ng.

SENATOR M CCICHE said that if you are using the space and
the space is necessary in order to access the building or
do the things that humans do at work, you wouldn’'t |ease
anot her building or piece of property anywhere el se w thout
consi dering that usable space. He said he wondered why LAA
chose to use that nunber as the way to determ ne usable
space.

M5. VARNI asked Tanci Mntz to address the Senator’'s
guesti on.

CHAI R STEVENS asked Senator Mcciche to confirm that his
guestion is about the difference between usable and gross
for the purposes of a | ease. Senator M cciche confirned.

TANCI M NTZ, State Leasing & Facilities Manager, Division
of General Services, Departnent of Admnistration, put
herself on the record. She said there were three different
methods in the industry for renting space: “usable,”
“rentable,” and “gross.” She said Ms. Varni was correct in
that the State Executive Branch and the Legislative Branch
use “usable,” which signifies the space that one physically
operates within, the dem sed walls. It does not include the
nmechani cal roons, stairwells, min |obby areas; it 1is
strictly the space of the office suite. The “gross” square
footage is everything in the building. Wthin the Executive
Branch and, as she understands it, the Legislative Branch,
“usabl e” square footage is used in all of the |eases, of

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 10 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



which, for the Executive Branch there are 450 statew de,
even if the | ease space is a full building.

SENATOR M CCICHE said it was an interesting netric to use
when |easing comercial space. He said you sinply can't
magically elimnate the other spaces that serve a buil ding.
He said he doesn’'t believe we do that in the other LIGs as
well when he thinks about the common space in those
| ocations. He said if soneone else was comng to |ease this
building at 716 W 4th Avenue, it would include that other
space just like one would any other conmercial space. He
didn"t know if it was a fair conparison per square footage
as Council tries to process this decision. Conmpbn spaces
cannot be elimnated as you cannot use the building wthout
t hose common spaces. He said that he’d like to expand his
initial request to understand the total space that the
Legislature is occupying versus how *“usable” space is
determined in those spaces across the state.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER said that since the Departnent of
Adm nistration is at the testifier’'s table, he had sone
questions he’d like to ask about the Atwood Building. He
said that he has been on the Council periodically over the
last 10 years and he is trying to figure out how we got
where we are today. He said he thinks Council was up
against a deadline and there really wasn't any other space
avai l abl e downtown that could house as nuch space as was
needed. He said all governnent offices try to stay downtown
whenever possible. At that tine, the Atwood Building wasn’t
available and he thought the plan was to try and
consolidate all the office space for state enployees
t hroughout the city. He said he asked how many | eases were
expiring for office space and there was a lot expiring in
2016. He wondered how nuch space was available today and
how nmuch space would be available at the end of 2016, if
t he consolidation process continues.

M5. M NTZ responded that there was currently a vacancy in
t he Atwood Buil ding of 23,000 usable square feet.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER asked about the current square
footage at the Anchorage LI O

M5. MNTZ, with information provided by Ms. Varni, replied
that there was 45,371 usable square feet. She went on to
say that it was the intention that another full floor be
identified for the LIO and legislative office occupation

bringing the total to approximately what was needed. In
response to followup questions by Senator Meyer and Chair

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 11 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



Stevens, she responded about other |ease space for the
Executive Branch that there are quite a few | eases that are
expiring and nmany of them have options, which would
normally renew since the rate remains the sane. The |eases
that do not have renewal options require an exam nation of
the particular office to determine if the mssion is
conpatible wth those currently occupying the Atwood
Building; if not and they are going to stay in that office
space, they determine if downsizing is possible; each |ease
and occupying office is looked at individually on a case-
by-case basis. She said there are sonme agencies that would
be noved into the Atwood Building if the LIQIegislative
offices chose not to nove into the Atwood Building. She
said she would nake avail able copies of what she provided
to the Senate President.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER said that it would be good for the

other Council nenbers to have the spreadsheet because it
| ooks like there is over 200,000 square feet of |eased
office space expiring. |If +the Admnistration continued

their consolidation, there wouldn't be enough space in the
Atwood Building for all the expiring |eases |et alone space
for the Legislature. He agreed with the Chair that the cost
of the office space leases is inportant, sone of the |eases
are fairly cheap. He asked what the Atwood Building per
square foot cost was.

M5. MNTZ said that it was $1.50 per square foot. The |ease
rate is renewed every year, re-analyzed based on the
previous year’s operating expenses. For FY 16, the Atwood
Building lease cost is $1.50 per square foot for a full
service lease, which includes all wutilities, nmaintenance
and operations, parking, security, and buildi ng nanagenent.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER said that was sonething to be | ooked
at; for instance DEC has 45,000 square feet at $2.34 and
the HESS at $1.98 and DOT at $2.07. He said that granted
that's still a lot cheaper than what the Legislature is
paying for at 716 W 4th Avenue but it’'s still something
worth |ooking at and meking a conparison so we can see
where we can nmaxim ze the savings.

CHAI R STEVENS requested a copy of the spreadsheet be given
to the full Council. He asked Ms. Mntz, based on sonething
he had heard, about whether there were state agencies in
Anchorage who would not want to nove into the Atwood or who
woul d not be wel coned into the Atwood by the other tenants.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 12 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



M5. M NTZ said that when considering who would be a good
fit for the Atwood Building, they look at the mssion of
the agency, and their relationship wth the Executive
Branch and wth the CGovernor’'s Ofice, due to the
proximty. She said Atwood is a Cass A office building, so
we want to bring in agencies that are a good fit. She said
that the | ease nentioned by Senator Meyer for DOT is their
wei ght and neasures office area where they have their | abs,
so that would not be a good fit; OCS, due to the anount of
traffic they have would also not be a good fit in the
Atwood. She said they do look at the |eases one by one to
see which would be a good relationship to be co-located
with the other tenants in the building. In response to a
guestion by Chair Stevens, Ms. Mntz said the Legislature
woul d be a good fit.

VI CE CHAIR HERRON asked, if this option was executed, when
could the Legislature nove into the Atwood Buil di ng.

M5. MNTZ said that it would be 1.5 to 2 years to have the
space ready.

CHAI R STEVENS said there would be nmuch nore detail about
t he Atwood when that option was di scussed.

SENATOR M CCI CHE said that before the $1.53 price is picked
up and carried too nuch further, that the Legislature’s
cost for the Atwood would be about $4.90 per square foot
with “all in.” He said he wanted to nake sure there was an
appl es-t o- appl es conpari son.

M5. VARNI said that was correct although the Legislature
has already paid the $7.5 nmillion for tenant inprovenents
at 716 W 4th Avenue, the total actually would be $2.82 per
square foot if one is just looking at the costs for the
Atwood and the tenant inprovenents for the Atwood, not
i ncluding what was already paid for the tenant inprovenents
in the current building.

SENATOR M CCICHE said then the $7.5 mllion should be
renoved fromall the conparisons.

M5. VARNI responded that was why the anobunt was put in a
separate table so that it didn't look like she was trying
to hide it.

SPEAKER CHENAULT asked if it was possible to get a list of
bui | di ngs owned by the State of Al aska in Anchorage.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 13 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



M5. MNTZ said that there were quite a few other buildings
owned by the State, but not a large quantity of office
buil dings’ there was the crine |ab, the troopers, UAA has a
few office buildings, the Mental Health Land Trust has a
few office buildings, the DOTI conplex on Tudor; but as far
as large scale office buildings owed by the State, there
are not very many of them She said that she would work
with Ms. Varni to provide a list of those buil dings.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked to followup on the Speaker’s
request and said that the utilization of that space had
been a factor under consideration by the previous
Adm nistration and she believed by this Admnistration
| ooking at design standards for all of us and that’s why
she was asking the question about the Honmer LIO She said
she was thinking about the DOT facility out by the airport
and she wanted to know how many enployees are actually
utilizing that square footage so that they can see if the
best use is happening for each of the facilities. She said
she certainly thinks the people of Alaska are interested in
how we are utilizing space everywhere, not only in the
Anchorage LIO but how we are |ooking at square footage and
how it is wutilized throughout the state. She understood
that sonme of that space was pretty sprawing now and in
these tough tines, she does think that consolidation of
some of the |ease space is sonething that they should
consider and do. She said she would like an update, not
necessarily for this commttee, but on the space standards
study that this Admnistration set aside. She said that
there was a planned use for all 20,000 square feet that is
currently sitting vacant and has sat vacant for close to a
year that the Atwood Building has foregone revenue. She
wasn’'t sure why and she understood that the Legislature had
an issue at this particular facility that we’'re trying to
work through but there were opportunities in last year’s
cycle to nove additional agencies into the Atwood square
footage and not have it sit vacant. She said she knows the
Admi nistration is looking at that and she would just Ilike
to understand nore so that when we’'re evaluating, as
Senator M cciche said, apples-to-apples instead of apples-
t o- or anges.

CHAI R STEVENS said that was a very appropriate question in
these hard tines. Speaking about the Atwood, the top fl oor
he wunderstood was a firm of attorneys that have since
vacated; that entire floor was Ileased to an outside
busi ness, not an agency of the State.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 14 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



M5. MNTZ confirned that the 19th and top floor of the
Atwood Building had been occupied by the Alaska Bar
Associ ation. Wen they vacated, the Adm nistration used
t hat space, as had been done in t he previ ous
Adm ni stration, as tenporary space for agencies while space
standard renodel s and consolidation were conpleted over the
past few years.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said she had the opportunity on several
occasions last year to walk through sone of the Atwood
Bui l ding and the vacancy in the cubicles there was huge, at
|east at that particular tinme. She said she understood
there was novenent going on and she |ooks forward to the
space standards study so they can see what is happening and
appreciated the docunment titled *“Anchorage Ofice Leases
Expiring.” She said she wondered if they should |ook at
| ease space across the state in its entirety for the sane
pur pose: what do we have, how is it being utilized, could
it be placed in the hands of the private sector, could
resources be consolidated together. She said she knows that
earlier in the neeting, there was a discussion of sone
expensive |ease space up in Barrow, we understand those
chall enges in that market but when she has traveled in past
years to other parts of the state, she saw entire buil di ngs
vacated from the federal governnment because people coul dn’t
afford to pay the rents that those comunities were asking
for those facilities. She said that was just one facility,
it was a federal project but it would be nice to know what
i s happening with our |ease space.

Senat or MacKi nnon said maybe we should just request that
from the Senate Finance Conmittee to be ready for the next
| egi sl ative session to have a review of the assets that the
State owns from the Administration as well as the square
footage that we’'re paying as well as any outstanding
capital requests, sonething that is all enconpassing for
how we are utilizing that space.

CHAIR STEVENS said he agreed that it is very appropriate
that we do this. He said wal king through the Atwood space,
it was surprising how nuch enpty space there was, but M.
Mntz also took him through the other buildings - the one
with white arches near the Captain Cook Hotel and the one
down nore on the waterfront by the Railroad - there is just
a lot of space that is not being utilized because of the
reduction that we see in staff. He said he wanted to pursue
a little farther that there are agencies that either are
not wanted in the Atwood because of the activity or that
woul d rather be in other places and one that he personally

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 15 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



knew of he asked Ms. Mntz to address, which is the Whale
Building right next to the Courthouse, which he believed
was occupi ed by Law and was a pretty substantial occupancy.

M5. MNTZ said the Departnent of Law, which includes the
Attorney Ceneral’s Ofice, is in the 1031 W 4th Avenue
building, the Brady Building, and the District Attorney’s
Ofice is in the Whale Building. The District Attorney’s
Ofice does not occupy the entire building but they have
had a presence there for a long tinme. The standard wthin
the Executive Branch is that any agency that does the
business with the Court System be located within a three
bl ock radius because of the amount of traffic between the
Courthouse and their offices.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER said, of these |leases that are
expiring in 2016, and as he nentioned there are a |ot of
them sonme of them are happening in January or February and
didn’t know if Senator MacKinnon and the Finance Committee
woul d have time to address sonme of these. He asked if M.
Mntz had identified which groups, if any, that they do
want to nove to the Atwood Building. He said his other
guestion was that the Atwood Building isn’'t that much
farther away from the Courthouse than the building
mentioned by the Chair. He said it sounds |like we do rent
out the Atwood Building to other law firns so he guessed
maybe they should question whether they have to be that
close. He said he thought the rent at that other building
was pretty high although he didn’t have the nunbers in
front of him He asked how nuch square footage has been
identified as being able to nove into the Atwood Buil ding
of the | eases that are going to expire in 2016.

M5. MNTZ said that there is one specifically that will be
expiring May 31, 2016, with four one year renewal options;
she said they would nost likely be exercising the first one
year renewal option to give them time to build out the
space to nmeke it ready for them and that is the Departnent
of Environmental Conservation (DEC). She said that they are
waiting to see if the space would be wused by the
Legislature. DEC is the |argest |ease that they would | ook
to nove in and whatever couldn’'t be accommobdated at the
At wod would be noved to the Bayview Building where other
DEC staff are currently located. That was one that the
Chair and sone other Menbers wal ked through to see that
vacancy and utilize the space that is not being used
efficiently. As it relates to legal firns in the Atwod
Building, all the private tenants have vacated the Atwood
Building so there are no law firns there now. She said that

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 16 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



to conplete their mssion and to have everyone next to each
other, they try to keep Department of Law and the District
Attorneys together because they wuse so nmany shared
resour ces.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER asked Ms. M nt z, after sone
di scussion to identify the functions of certain groups wth
| eases also expiring My 31, 2016, to confirm how nuch
space DEC had currently and what was available at the
At wood Bui | di ng.

M5. MNTZ confirmed that DEC currently occupied 45,000
square feet and that there is 23,000 square feet available
at the Atwood Building, with the opportunity to consolidate
t hrough space efficiency to retain another 13,000 square
feet. Each floor is about 12,000-13,000 square feet.

SENATE PRES|I DENT MEYER said then that it would be a stretch
to try and get all of DEC in at Atwood.

M5. M NTZ repeated that what didn't fit would be noved into
the Bayview Building where there are other DEC offices
al ready | ocat ed.

SENATOR MACKINNON said she wanted to go back to the
conversation about the \Wale Building. She asked Ms. Mntz
whether the State owns or |eases that building and M.
Mntz confirmed that the building is |eased. She asked for
t he average square footage cost |ease on that building.

M5. MNTZ responded that it was approxinmately $3.00 per
square foot for a full service |ease.

SENATOR MACKINNON said we find ourselves in interesting
times. Alaska has a revenue shortfall of $3-4 billion
dollars and we need to do business differently. She said
she was putting that on the table and that is the primary
basis and the foundation for her coments. She said she has
heard this body and other bodies during three special
sessions talk about the need to fulfill our conmtnents, we
need to conplete our contracts, we need to do the right
thing for the people of Alaska. So, we’'re just as close to
the Boney Courthouse in this facility and we have nore
utilization or at |east square footage available in this
facility if we wanted to bring other occupants into this
building to do that. She said she just put that out there
if we're short and trying to get our team together that
there is an opportunity to nove things around and still
fulfill commtnents. She said she wondered what kind of

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 17 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



analysis we’'re doing to honor our contracts. She said she
t hought she heard Ms. Mntz say that the Administration is
anticipating over at the Atwood Building through space
standards wutilization the opportunity to save space of
about 13,000 square feet or one nore floor. She asked if
t hat was accurate.

M5. MNTZ replied that it was.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked which floor was being cleared to
achi eve that space.

M5. MNTZ said it would be the Departnent of Natural
Resources and they would need to work with them closely to
see which floor would work best for them to consolidate;
t hey have approximately four or five floors currently.

SENATOR MACKINNON directed a conment to M. Var ni
concerning her nention of a “penthouse.” She asked M.
Varni to el aborate.

M5. VARNI said the “penthouse” is the word used to refer to
t he mechani cal space, it is not office space.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said the list of expiring State
| eases goes through 2017 and since it was going to be
approximately two years before the space was ready, he
requested a list for 2018 as well. Ms. Mntz said she would
certainly provide that. He asked when the Wale Building
|ease would expire and then asked if there was a
consolidated |ist of all |eased State space.

M5. MNTZ replied that there is a list of all |eased State
space on their website and that she could get him a
consolidated list like the one she provided for Senate
Presi dent Meyer through 2018.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO said that when we |ook at this list of
| eased spaces that are expiring, he doesn’'t see any of that
space exceeding $2.70 a square foot. He said 20,000 or
30,000 square feet of our utilization is going to save the
State of Al aska, because we are part of the State of
Al aska, a significant amount of noney if we were to go into
the Atwood Building versus having another State agency
nove. He said there is no conparison because we are paying
so nuch nore. He then asked if the |ease rate was based on
the nunber of tenants, so based on the actual costs; in
other words, if there are nore tenants in the facility,
then the | ease rate actually goes down.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 18 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



M5. M NTZ responded that was not correct. The |lease rate is
based on the actual operating expenses and projected
operati ng expenses from the year before. Each agency pays
the sane rate under the Public Building Fund Program that
was established in 2000; so no matter if the building is
two-thirds full with a one-third vacancy, everyone still
pays the sane rate. The fund pays the vacant portion of the
space until it’s filled.

REPRESENTATI VE KITO said, to confirm it’'s the sane rate as
if it were full and the fuller it gets, the less the
vacancy fund is wutilized. M. Mntz agreed that was
correct.

CHAIR STEVENS asked Ms. Mntz if the State owned the
bui l di ng outright and owed no noney on it.

M5. MNTZ said the State does own the building. AHFC hol ds
the master |ease and in 2017 the lease will be paid in its
entirety and wll revert strictly to the Departnent of
Admi ni stration. The cost l|last year was $1.56 a square foot
and through the tines we are in right now, they did as much
as they could to bring costs down. They |ooked at service
contracts and renegotiated, which brings them a |ess
expensive rate this comng fiscal year. She said they would
continue to do that.

CHAI R STEVENS said that it’s a small point, but an issue he
knows the Senate President dealt with the Borough Assenbly
here, is that the Atwood Building owned by the State pays
no tax to the Cty. Right now, this building owed by M.
Pfeffer pays Cty tax, but we pay that to the owner. He
asked Ms. Varni if that was correct.

M5. VARNI said that was correct. She said we paid a total
of $262,335 and that was for the assessed value of
$17, 845,982 for this building.

CHAIR STEVENS said that it was fair to say that whatever
happens to this building short of the Legislature buying
it, if it stays in the public arena, taxes would be
collected on this building. M. Varni agreed that was
correct.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said that wunder Scenario #1, continuing
the current least at 716 W 4th Avenue, she said she hadn’t
heard any conversation about the flat rental rate. She said
it looks like the proposal somehow built in a ten year flat
fee. She wondered about the cost benefit and tine val ue of

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 19 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



noney, and how that structures out. So what she is saying

if the general public is listening, is however this was
negotiated it looks like it was negotiated to hold the sane
and there is value to that. She said you signed a ten year
| ease, nmy rental rate is not going up and we could have had
the rental rate significantly less in the first year and
escalate up over tinme at percentages. She asked if the
anal ysis had been done on the flat fee. She said she had
not done the analysis and she just sees $4 mllion dollars,
which sounds Ilike an incredibly large anount of noney,
$7.41 per square foot seens like price gouging to this
Legi slator, but then she has to take that second |look to
say that she is still paying that same rate in 2025 and she
doesn’t know what the escalator |ooks like after that and
she has a $7.5 mllion investnent of the people’'s noney
that she is trying to protect. She wanted to hear about the
time value of noney and the rental fee that stays flat, and
the |ease space actually to get it reported correctly is
approximately $3.4 mllion dollars.

M5. VARNI said that through the |eases throughout the
state, where we have a full service |ease, and there's only
a couple leases that are very small where we mght do our
own janitorial, but the rest of the |eases include a full
service lease. She said this is the only |lease that is not
a full service lease. In sone of the earlier drafts of the
| ease, before it was finalized, there was a 3% per year
escalation but we are paying the utilities. Wen we do a
full service |lease throughout the state, that’'s the reason
there is a CPl, the formula that gives that |andlord a cost
of living increase. Since we are paying the utilities, that
did not make sense to give the landlord an increase, and
she said she wasn’'t in on the negotiations, that was
Representati ve Hawker. She said that’'s why you see the $3.4
mllion a year without an escalation in there.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said she appreciated the answer though
it’s not the answer to the question she asked. This is a
flat fee and she will use Juneau as an exanple. She said
she had the honor of serving Al askans for nine years and is
going into her tenth session this year, and she started
paying rent for $1200 in Juneau and now she pays rent at
$1750 and she has been told that the rent is going to
escal ate again. So, there is property, a CPl, an escalation
process for the |ease space that you rent and it’s not
apparent in this scenario. She said she is with the people
of Al aska | ooking at that nunber saying that nunber is too
big but she hadn’t heard any discussion from a financial
perspective to understand what the real cost of today’'s

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 20 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



rent is versus paying it now and not paying it |later.
Sonehow this |ease looks like it was based on the thought
that the CPI would continue to go up and sonehow soneone
was trying to protect us in the future because we' re going

to pay the sane price later. If that doesn’'t work out
pencil -wi se, she just wants to know because if |'m paying
in 2016 $3.4 nillion for the |ease anpbunt, not the actua

cost because it's not a full service lease, and |I'm stil
paying that in 2025, there is sone security at least out in
2025 that we benefit from She said she doesn’'t know what
that |ooks |ike based on the spreadsheet she had. She said
it’s not a trick question, she just wanted to see the
nunbers.

M5. VARNI said that Serena Carlsen was on tel econference
and asked her to address that question.

SERENA CARLSEN, Partner at Stoel Rives, said she was
retained by the Legislative Council to work on both a |ease
negotiation and negotiation for the purchase of the
buil ding. She said she was not involved in the original
| ease but has | ooked at all the docunents and what was done
is that an escalator was applied to the original nunber
through year ten and then the rent was averaged. That is
the reason you do not see the |ease anmount changing over
the ten year period.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked if M. Carlsen could give the
general public the original |ease nunber so we know what
was averaged. She said that really still doesn’t acconplish
the math on the tine value of noney as far as front paying
t he anount.

MS5. CARLSEN said she could not answer the question of the
time value of noney and she would have to go back to pul
the original docunentation when the |ease was signed for
the mat hematics of how the nunber was derived; she doesn’t
know that off the top of her head because she didn't
participate in the original |ease negotiation.

SENATOR MACKINNON said she appreciated that and asked
whet her Ms. Carlson recalled if it was $1 mllion or $1.5
mllion in year one, escalating in $1.7 in year two,
escalating to $1.9 in year three and then those nunbers
were divided to arrive at the average.

M5. CARLSEN said that as she recalled there was a
conservative inflation factor added but she couldn't say

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 21 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



t he exact nunber although she thought it was sonmewhere in
the 2-3%range and then averaged over the ten years.

SENATOR MACKINNON said she just thought it would be
valuable to have that average. She said when you give the
general public a flat fee of ten years, it would have been
nice to know some of the background so that we could
understand the math. She said we nay be paying too nuch up
front if the price on inflation is very low or, if
inflation gets very high, it could be just the reverse. In
making the flat paynment you re taking sonewhat of a risk
over tine that you re CPl nunbers are accurate.

REPRESENTATI VE KITO, directing a question to M. Varni,
said that when she nentioned the recent tax paynents, she
i ndicated an assessed value and asked her to repeat that
nunber .

V. VARNI responded that the assessed value was
$17, 845, 982.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO t hen asked about the purchase price for
t he buil di ng.

M5. VARNI said that a letter was sent to Chairman Stevens
from Mark Pfeffer and he is asking $37,000,000 and, in
addition to that, whatever his cost is for prepaynent
penalty for his $28,000,000 loan; at this point, it is
estimated to be about $950,000 but we wouldn’t know the
exact anount until we’'re cl osing.

CHAI R STEVENS said then that the best guess at this point
is $37,950, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO followed up to say that if he bought a
house and put a bid on the house that exceeded the assessed
value of the house, he wouldn’t be able to get a loan for
that. He said he is concerned that our value in this
building is much | ess than the building is worth.

SENATOR M CClI CHE said that the difference between assessed
value and appraised value is fairly significant. He said
that if you asked any investor for any conmercial building
if they could purchase an investnent for the assessed val ue
there would be lots of folks swarmng to the table.

CHAI R STEVENS said he wanted to clarify a comment Ms. Varni
made for the Council. Wwen we started to put together a
conmpari son of these five scenarios, we started wth a 20

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 22 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



year basis and that seened to make sense. As we noved
along, M. Carlsen said the current |ease was only 10
years, so to conpare apples-to-apples, each scenario should
be for a period of 10 years for all five. He said a 20 year
scenario was available to Council; they could also do a 30
year because that may be what a nortgage term would be. He
just wanted nenbers to be aware that the reason we are
using a 10 year conparison is so Council wll be able to
make a better evaluation of all five options.

SENATOR MACKI NNON wanted confirmation that the assessed
value of $17,000,000 was for 2015 and asked what the
assessed val ue was before the building was repaired.

M5. VARNI said that she did have that figure and woul d need
a mnute to find it. She said she believed it was under
$2,000,000 and that the landlord requested and received a
reduction in the assessed value due to problens with the
HVAC system

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked if the Chair had the appraised val ue
of the building to accentuate the difference between those
two terns.

3:11:23 PM

DI SCUSSI ON FOLLOWED between Chair Stevens, Senator M cciche
and Doug Gardner, Legal Services Director, who had advised
the Chair to discuss the different appraisal values first

in Executive Session. In response to Senator Mcciche's
guestions and concerns that the assessed value nunber was
made public and the appraised values should be as well, M.

Gardner said that while the assessed value was not the sane
as the apprai sed value, and that purchases are based on the
apprai sed value, the assessed value was one nore nunber for
Council to consider. M. Gardner recommended that Council
hear from the comercial real estate expert Peter Shorett
with Kidder Matthews first in Executive Session so that
they could have a good understanding of the different
apprai sal values and then decide how they wanted to share
that information with the public. Chair Stevens agreed to
hold the initial discussion of appraisals in Executive
Sessi on.

3:15: 33 PM

SENATOR MACKI NNON said that she was one of the Legislators
that advocated for the purchase of the NANA Building by
Legislative Council. She said one of the things that
happened when the Legislature was trying to allow nore
parking for the people of Anchorage in the downtown area

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 23 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



was that constituents contacted her office and Senator
Cowdery’s office and many others. The Legislature had a
debate about sharing parking with the people and the Gty
of Anchorage. She said there was a business agreenent that
brought in revenue to the Legislature and basically ran the
cost of our own |ease space up by basically show ng the
owners of the property that there was parking that was
under-utilized 1in evening hours and that they could
actual ly make nore noney on that property.

Senat or MacKi nnon asked how parking was being handl ed now
She said she wasn’t part of the original discussion on this
process. She said there is now paid parking outside of
busi ness hours and she asked if the Legislature shared in
any of that revenue or is that just a portion of the |ease.
She thought the Legislature had received sone benefit from
openi ng up our parking to the people of Anchorage.

M5. VARNI said that the Legislature had a separate contract
with EasyPark and it was her recollection that the
Legi slature receives approximtely $20,000 annually in
revenue. She said Jessica Ceary, Finance Manager, would be
able to provide the exact figure.

SENATOR MACKINNON asked if that was reflected as a
reduction or revenue in the |ease costs presented to
Counci |

M5. VARNI said it is not figured in the scenarios, it is
not paid to the landlord. If it were to be included, it
woul d probably show as a reduction in the operating
expenses. It isn’'t a docunented revenue, it goes back to
t he general fund.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said she raised this because (1) it is a
revenue source that is not reflected here and (2) it is a
negotiated fee, if the State actually didn't have EasyPark
doing it and did it ourselves, there is a revenue generator
that is vacant that could offset sone of the costs and
that’s how we negotiated it originally. W thought it would
be additional inconme for the State. She said $20,000
conpared to $3.4 nmillion dollars, while huge in her books,
is not significant to nove the percentages up or down. She
said she was just wondering what wasn’t included as revenue
fromthat particular revenue streamthat we identified. She
noted to the Chair that particular nove caused our |ease
prices to go up when the owner recognized that there was
profit to be nmade in the parking | ot too.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 24 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the Legislature rented
par ki ng spaces during the renovation process at a cost of
$600 per nonth.

M5. VARNI said there were parking expenses and said Juli
Lucky, staff to Representative Hawker, would probably be
abl e to answer that question.

JULI LUCKY, staff to Representative Mke Hawker, put
herself on the record and said she didn't have the actual
nunbers but could provide them She said it was her
understanding that part of the negotiation was that the
| andl ord would pay for the parking, so we didn't actually
cut a check or see the nunbers. She said what basically
happened is that we would send the |andlord the nunber of
parking permts needed per nonth and the landlord would
purchase the permts and give them to her. There was no
cost to the Legislature for parking.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he wasn't talking about the
cost to the Legislature, but |looking at the math, at a cost
of $600, that’'s $28,000 per nonth just if we use the top
hal f of our parking lot. So, all of a sudden, the $20, 000
becomes a fairly big nunber if you multiply it, take half
the parking spaces tinmes $600 tines 12 is $300, 000-plus
that we could generate in revenue.

SENATE PRESI DENT MEYER directed a question to Ms. Lucky. He
said Ms. Varni nentioned that the |lease on this building
was negotiated by Representative Hawker, the previous
Legislative Council Chair. He believed that Representative
Hawker had assistance from Alaska Housing Fi nance
Corporation in helping him to determne what was a fair
amount for the State and asked Ms. Lucky to speak to that.

M5. LUCKY said that she was not involved wth the
negotiations. One of the reasons was because AHFC was
retained as the tenant representative and she knew that
they did a substantial anmount in the negotiations and al so
a substantial anpbunt in determning the fair prices of the
tenant inprovenents. She could not provide that nany
details as she was not involved in the day-to-day
negoti ations. She said she does know that AHFC did the
majority of working with the Legislature’ s |egal counsel
and the landlord in coming up with the |ease. She said M.
Gardner m ght better be able to address that question.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 25 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



CHAI R STEVENS asked menbers if Council was confortable in
nmoving on to Scenario #2; noting that many issues in the
upcom ng scenari os may have al ready been di scussed.

M5. VARNI, before noving on to Scenario #2, said she just
received a text noting that the Legislature did receive
$26, 200 in FY 14 for parking revenue.

Ms. Varni said the action required for Scenario #2:
Purchase 716 W 4th Avenue Funded by AHFC I|ssuing Fixed-Rate
Bonds is that the Legislature would need to pass a stand-
alone bill to enable AHFC to finance the purchase of this
building; wth the issuance of bonds wth a 10-year
maturity at a fixed rate of approximately 2.16 percent. She
said she did receive the debt service interest costs as
well as the cost of bond issuance and administration from
M ke Strand, Finance Director of AHFC. She said it was a
total of $48,850,000; which includes the $37,950,000
purchase price, $4,800,000 debt service interest total, and
the cost of bond issuance and admi nistration. This brings
the annual |ease purchase cost to AHFC to $4, 360,000 plus
$5, 250, 000 for operating and nai ntenance expenses. She said
t he operating expenses went down under any of the purchase
scenari os because we would not be paying insurance or
property taxes. Because we would own this asset and be
responsible for any and all ongoing nmaintenance and
operating costs, one position was added for a building
manager to the operating expenses.

CHAIR STEVENS said he wanted to acknow edge the several
Legislators not on Legislative Council who are either in
the room or on teleconference and invited them to ask
qguestions if they had any.

There being no questions regarding Scenario #2, the Chair
had Ms. Varni nove to Scenario #3.

M5. VARNI said Scenario #3 was to purchase 716 W 4th Avenue
via the issuance of variable rate certificates of
participation. The action required would be that the
Legi slature would need to pass a stand-alone bill outlining
the project, cost, annual paynent and total paynents. This
i nformati on was obtained from Deven Mtchell, Debt Manager
with the Treasury Division in the Departnent of Revenue.
These figures show a flat rate interest of 0.6% which is
the current variable rate. She said there is a risk that if
interest rates rise, the State’'s credit quality dimnishes,
or there is a market dislocation, the interest rate would
i ncrease; however, the calculations use the current

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 26 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



variable rate. The total shows the purchase price of
$37, 950, 000; the debt service interest rate of $1, 149, 600,
and operating costs over the 10 year period of $5, 250, 000.
The total cost woul d be $44, 614, 600.

VICE CHAIR HERRON said he needed to understand the advice
from both in-house and outside counsel why only a 10 year
wi ndow was used. He said if he was going to buy a new hone,
he couldn’t afford to pay it off in 10 years.

DOUG GARDNER, Legal Services Director, said that the idea
was, since the Legislature does an annual budget, to try
and | ook at sone exanples of scenarios that | ook at a cash
flow type of analysis so nenbers would know what they were
facing; and nmake sone effort, as was alluded to earlier, to
try and do an apples-to-apples conparison. He said M.
Carl sen was online and may be able to answer that question.
The two exanples pointed out both in conparison to a cash

purchase price illustrate that there are financing costs,
illustrate that there are netrics we don’t know enough
about; but the purpose was to illustrate the fact that it

is nore expensive to finance. Were the Legislature to want
to purchase, the Legislature mght want to look at 20 or 25
years, sonething |ike that. The total price would get
| arger because you're financing it over a period of tineg;
and the annual cash price would likely drop. M. Carlsen
m ght be able to provide enough information to address the
Vice Chair’s question.

M5. CARLSEN said that in the comercial world, buildings
are typically financed between 20 and 30 years; 20 probably
the nost conmmon in the current financing environnent.

CHAIR STEVENS asked M. Varni to share the 20 year
conpari son costs for Scenarios 2 and 3.

M5. VARNI said she would be happy to share the 20 year
total cost in each of the five scenarios. The total cost
for Scenario #1 (continue in current |ease) would be
$80, 640, 000; #2 (purchase using AHFC bonds) would be
$62, 800, 000; #3 (purchase via issuance of certificates of
participation) would be $51,037,600; #4 (cash purchase,
plus operating costs over a 20 year period) would be
$55, 950, 000; and #5 (noving to State-owned Atwood Buil di ng)
woul d be $13, 295, 520.

VICE CHAIR HERRON said it was inportant that be explained
because in the early *80s, when he hardly had two nickels
to rub together, his wfe and he did take out a 30 year

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 27 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



note for their home, which they still live in. He said that
they realized within seven years that they should refinance
for a period of 15 years because they would have paid two
or three tinmes over if they had gone the full 30 years. He
said the shock value of Scenarios 2 and 3, when one doesn’t
know why we did the scenario; that is inportant for the
public to know.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said she would like the square footage
costs in the 20 year version of Scenarios 2 and 3, because
that is what we were conparing. She al so asked how | ong we
have been in this particular facility renting already. She
said there was sone value in being located in this
building. She said Anchorage’s Conprehensive Plan 2020
actually asks for governnent services to locate in the
downtown area as part of their planning efforts.

M5. VARNI said the square footage cost in Scenario #2 was
$6.46 and in Scenario #3 was $5. 38.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked about the square footage costs for
Scenario #4 to include the ampbunt of time the Legislature
had already been in the building, and, in response to M.
Varni saying she would need to refigure those costs, agreed
that it would be acceptable to get those nunbers after the
neet i ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked what the square footage costs
would be in vyear 2026 wunder the 10 vyear purchasing
scenari os.

M5. VARNI said she believed it would be simlar to what the
square footage cost was in Scenario #5: Mve to State-Owmed
Space at the Atwood Buil ding, nmaybe in the $1.70 range.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said so if we bit the bullet for 10
years and then after that for 20 or 30 years we pay $1.70.
Agreei ng that any maintenance and operating costs would be
on top of that, he said his point was that this was a
really front end | oaded | ease with the 10 years. He said he
was less interested in conparing apples-to-apples then he
is in conmparing what is best for the State in the long run

He said he wanted to look at all of the scenarios and he
doesn’t think he has all the scenarios in front of him He
said in 2026, $1.70 plus nmamintenance is going to |ook
real |y good.

REPRESENTATI VE KITO said that if we choose Scenario #5, we
are in a situation where we already are, at that point

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 28 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



payi ng $1.80 per square foot for the next 10 years, which
is a significant savings to the State between now and year
10, when then, as an owned facility, we would drop down to
the level of what the State is paying at the Atwood
Bui | di ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said that was assumng the rent
doesn’t go up. He said his point was for illustrative
pur poses only, sonmewhere in the next 10 years, there’'s got
to be a balance between the $7.00 and the $1.70 per square
foot cost that we can conme to. O not. He said he thinks
that unless we look at that, and |ook at that scenario as
well as these five, we may have 10 scenarios here and he is
not confortable at this point with the information we have
because he thinks there are a lot of other options out
there that we haven't really |ooked at. And we haven't
| ooked at the long term costs of the noney. He said he
can’t disagree with what Representative Kito said, but it’s
just a balance and was for illustrative purposes that he
nmentioned that.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said we’'re conparing all the scenarios to
noving to the Atwood Building because that appears to be
the |owest cost, at |east for tonorrow versus today. She
asked the Adm nistration if they re planning on building
that out for free or whether there are going to be costs
associated and charged to the Legislature for the build-
out. She heard it stated that it will take one to two years
to nodify that space and it’s been sitting vacant sonehow,
not sure where that request cane from that we would ask
anyone to hold office space open; she asked if the State
was going to try to recoup then the cost they would have
received from leasing that space somewhere else. She
summari zed her two questions as: (1) is the Legislature
going to pay for the cost to re-purpose its own square
footage and (2) will we be charged for any of the vacancy
rate while that renodel is being done. She then asked if
there were relocations costs for the people who have to
nove out on behalf of us being able to nove in.

M5. VARNI responded to the first question by referring
Council to the bottom of the page on Scenario #5 show ng
tenant inprovenents total cost of $3,500,000. She noted
that all State agencies, when they renodel their space, are
financially responsible for their inprovenents.

M5. MNTZ said that her office had provided LAA with sone
tenporary space and costs they had identified should the
LIO and legislative offices need to nove out if the |ease

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 29 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



was termnated. She said they do not anticipate noving
anyone out of the Atwood Building to make room for the
Legi sl ature.

M5. VARNI added that the tenporary space avail able woul d be
at a total vyearly cost of $394,083; it includes the
McKinley Building across the street, which served as
tenporary space during the renodel of 716 W 4th Avenue, and
would offer four floors that are currently sitting vacant
at between $1.75 and $1.95 per square foot depending on the
floor. She said there’s also quite a bit of space in the
Al aska Legal Center at 6th and K Street by the Captain Cook
Hot el .

SENATOR MACKINNON said that didn't answer her question,
which was that if we were to enter into a lease in the
Atwood Building to build-out the space for us, would there
be a square footage cost for the tinme that the inprovenents
were nmade and, on top of that, would there be, if sonehow
soneone has led the Administration to believe you should
just hold this open for us and not rent the space right
now, are you going to try to recoup the cost of it sitting
vacant. She said that’s what she believed happened at the
current building, that we paid rent during the period of
t he renodel

M5. MNTZ said she would need to confirm wth the
Adm ni stration but it has been the practice that you would
start paying rent the day you start physically occupying.

SENATOR MACKINNON said that sounds |like a good business
practice.

CHAI R STEVENS asked Ms. Varni with regard to Scenario #4
and purchasing the building, there have been sonme issues
with this building, so what problens are we buying or wll
we wind up with that have not been solved to date, and for
whi ch he assunmed we woul d be responsible for.

M5. VARNI said there have been quite a few building
pressurization problens that cause the front doors and the
door to the parking lot to not conpletely close. W did
have a gl ass outside w ndow shatter on the 5th floor, which
took seven weeks to be replaced. W have had quite a few
conplaints on noise transm ssion between the offices; also
noi se transm ssion issues between the ABC conference roons
on the first floor; water bottle filling stations can't
work with cups; multiple sidewal k ranp to garage deck heat
failures; conplaint from next door neighbor of ice buildup

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 30 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



onto their property; multiple door hold-opens in offices
requiring nultiple repairs throughout the building; a |arge
water leak in Suite 216 wth a frozen radiator; multiple
roof leaks into a suite on the 6th floor; tenperature
control problenms; false alarns with the fire protection
system generator not shutting off when power is restored
to the building; HVAC problenms in the server room battery
failures in the auto trash cans, faucets and soap
di spensers; nultiple elevator errors; drain traps dry which
cause sewage snells; proximty card system problens; glass
canopy water problens; and recently nmaintenance checks on
the HVAC system show the system is very inefficient, that
the heat and cooling are kind of chasing each other and
running sinultaneously in sonme cases, applying heat and
cooling nost of the tine. She said we will have continuous
mai nt enance problens and that’s why they |ooked to add a
bui | di ng mai ntenance person. Also in the current |ease, it
says that they will not be doing any painting for 10 years
and we do know that offices nove or people want painting
done, which is another reason to add a buil ding nai ntenance
per son.

CHAIR STEVENS said that one issue that bothered him was
that when they tried to hold an Executive Session in this
conference room for the Ethics Commttee, people in the
hal I way could hear what was being said. He asked if that
was sonething that could be fixed and whether it would be
expensive. This roomis not soundproof.

M5. VARNI said we have not |ooked into trying to fix that,
so she is unsure if it could be fixed nor what the cost
m ght be. She said the glass doors nmay have sonething to do
with it.

SENATOR M CCICHE said his wunderstanding was that this
building was on a warranty and asked if the building owner
had been approached to correct those issues.

M5. VARNI said it has been ongoing. She said she didn't
know if the landlord would be able or willing to replace
the water bottle filling stations wth actual drinking
fountains or replace all the door closures with a different
type of hardware. She said that M ke Warenda, Anchorage
Information Oficer, has had problenms with the key | ocking
system so perhaps a higher quality hardware. She said that
the warranty expires in January and she didn't know what
the landlord was willing to do.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 31 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



SENATOR M CCICHE said he doesn’'t have a predetermn ned
obj ective on location and he doesn’t have an agenda about
where we go. He said he has one consideration and that’'s
conpetitiveness on a cost per square foot basis, but he
wants that basis to be conpared apples-to-apples and he
doesn’t think we have that today. He asked about the
Chair’s tinmeline and is he considering a smaller task force
that helps to get sonme of these scenarios on the table. He
said he doesn’t know that we’ve processed these nunbers to
a point of looking at a unit cost that varied between $5.18
in Barrow to sonmething less in nobst other |ocations. He
doesn’t think we have processed the scenarios to where we
understand if we <can get this location down to a
conpetitive per square foot basis. He asked again if the
Chair was thinking about a task force that gets better
nunbers, and answers to sone of these questions to where we
can make a decision. He said if we can't get nore
conpetitive, it’s clear that this is a space that is not
putting the Legislature on | ower cost operating priorities.

CHAIR STEVENS said he was really concerned about the
timeline. He said we have several tineline issues that
we're facing. One issue is that we’ ve negotiated a purchase
price with M. Pfeffer and that price is good through the
end of January 2016. W also need to send the Finance
Conmittees a budget request and need to know what that is
going to be; he remnded Council that what they wll be
doing is making a reconmendation to the Finance Committees
and, frankly, the ball stops at the Finance Comm ttees and
at the Legislature to decide how we're going to pay for al

that. He said he is also concerned about the Atwood
Building; if that is a serious consideration that we are
maki ng, we could dawdle our way through this and find
ourselves in the same place as we did with the NANA
Building - that we’'ve waited too |long and no |onger is that
space available. As Senator MacKinnon has said, at sone
point they should, and we would expect them to, begin
| ooking for other tenants if we're not ready to nmake a
decision. He said honestly, in working with the prior
Chair, his options were very, very limted; he did not have
the option in going to the Atwood Building as we do now.
There were others that were involved in trying to negotiate
with the Administration on that and it was sinply not a
possibility as he understood it. He repeated that he is
really concerned about those tinelines, it really puts us
under the gun. W can keep fighting and arguing and ki cking
this can down the road; we’ ve already done it for 10 years
that he’s been involved and we can keep doing it another 10
years, he supposed, and just stay right here. That's an

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 32 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



option. He said to fully answer the question about the
price of the building, we need to hear from Serena Carl sen
again because he sat in on sone of those neetings for the
negotiations, as did Doug Gardner, Pam Varni and Katrina
Mat heny of his staff, but some of them they were not privy
to. It was his decision to hire an expert to do this; he
said he’s a history professor, what does he know about
negotiating a contract. He doesn’'t want to be put in that
position and he won't be put in that position, so we hired
Serena Carlsen to do that for us. She went back and forth
on various prices and wound up at this $37, 950,000 purchase
price. He asked Doug Gardner if we could discuss what
happened in those negotiations with M. Pfeffer.

MR. GARDNER said it is the Chair’s decision on the scope of
how to handle things. He said we’'ve got M. Carlsen and
Peter Shorett from Kidder Mtthews who can probably answer
a lot of these questions; they're on teleconference, M.
Shorett needs to catch a ferry and we’ ' re paying them by the
hour. He said at sonme point the nenbers need to get this
information and these are the kinds of questions he thinks
can be very fluidly answered in an Executive Session; they

can be answered publicly if you would like; it is the
Chair’s prerogative. In response to the Chair’s concern
about discussing legal issues in the public eye, M.

Gardner said we are in litigation with M. Cottstein and
there is overlap with these issues; he has nade clains
against us - the issue of the |ease and appropriation is
clearly a |egal question and a noney question. He
recormended that Council receive that information and then
choose how to relay it. It wll enable you to ask a |ot
nore questions in Executive Session and he conmented that
to the extent that he’'s answering those questions or Serena
Carlsen is, that’'s legal advice to the Council which has
traditionally been received in an Executive Session.

CHAI R STEVENS said he asked M. Gardner to give him a high
sign if we were straying into an area that should not be in
the public and so we’'ll take Senator MacKi nnon’s question
and then nobve into Executive Session so Council has a
chance to talk to Peter Shorett and Serena Carlsen who will
not be avail abl e soon.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said that to keep the record accurate, we
just went through a laundry list of problens with this
current building and she was wondering who managed the
project. She asked how did we get a sound system that is
| ouder than the walls. She said it was her understanding

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 33 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



that the State of Al aska took over the technical aspects of
the sound systemthat we’'re currently utilizing.

M5. VARNI said that she believed that Chariot Goup was
hired to recommend equipnment for this room though Juli
Lucky m ght know nore. In response to a followup question
by Senat or MacKi nnon, she said that the State of Al aska did
not put in the equipnment, it was the Chariot Goup. She
said she did not know if the State of Alaska picked what
system was installed and would get that information to
Senat or MacKi nnon.

SENATOR MACKI NNON sai d that she hoped when Council cane out
of Executive Session, we would have a nunber to share with
the people of Alaska about the cost of litigation in
reference to any of the scenarios that have been put in
front of Council.

CHAIR STEVENS said it was his intention that during
Executive Session Council will be appraised of the
potential costs of litigation; whether we want to share
that in a public neeting or not is up to you.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked if there was a divider behind the
wal | so that Council is actually in Executive Session.

CHAI R STEVENS said there wasn’t, but he would request M ke
Warenda to keep people away from the doors. In response to
a request by Representative Johnson for a 10 minute recess,
he said that it would take some tinme to go through the
process to go into Executive Session and he would call
fol ks back as soon as that was done. He asked for a notion
to go into Executive Session.

3.59: 07 PM

VICE CHAIR HERRON noved that Legislative Council go into
Executive Session under Uniform Rule 22(B)(1), discussion
of matters, the immediate knowl edge of which would
adversely affect the finances of a government wunit and
22(B)(3), discussion of a matter that my, by law, be
required to be confidential. | ask that the follow ng
individuals remain in the room Doug Gardner, Pam Varni,
Katrina Mtheny, Linda Hay, and legislative staff working
for Council nmenbers and that Serena Carlsen and Peter
Shorett be on line. W also welconme any Legislators that
are not on Legislative Council to remain in the room or
onl i ne.

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 34 of 35
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



Aroll call vote was taken

YEAS: Stevens, Herron, Meyer, Hoffman, Huggi ns, MacKi nnon
M cci che, Johnson, Kito

NAYS: None
The notion was approved 9-0.

CHAIR STEVENS, in response to a request by Senator
M cciche, agreed that Tanci Mntz could remain in the room
for Executive Session. He noted that Council was in recess
until they canme back together for the Executive Session

Legi sl ative Council went into Executive Session.

Legi sl ative Council canme out of Executive Session.
6: 06: 34 PM

CHAIR STEVENS said Council had an Executive Session in
which no action was taken, and he requested a notion from
Vice Chair Herron.

VI CE CHAIR HERRON noved that Legislative Council authorize
the Legal Services Division to represent and defend the
Al aska Legislature, and a former Al aska Legislator sued in
the Legislator’'s official capacity in Patterson vs.
Governor Bill Walker, et al, |JU15-692 C, and to report
to Council during the litigation as requested by the
chai rman regardi ng the progress of the case.

Aroll call vote was taken

YEAS: St evens, Herron, Huggi ns, MacKi nnon, M cci che,
Chenaul t, Johnson, Kito

NAYS: None
The notion was approved 8-0.

There being no further business before the comrttee, the
Legi sl ative Council neeting was adjourned at 6:08 p. m

6: 07:54 PM

Legi sl ative Council Meeting Page 35 of
Decenber 4, 2015
Approved April 14, 2016



